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KEY FIGURES

Sales Revenue

6,197.999,269

(2017: 4,442.102,67 8)

EBITDA

650.000,000

*

(2017: 430.704,533)

Profit before Tax & Depreciation

046.533,7/48

*

(2017: 319.296,913)

Profit after Taxation

269.820,582

*

(2017: 140.861,268)

Earning per share

2.06

(2017: 1.55)
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PKR in
Million

PKR in
Million

PKR in
Million

Return on Capital Employed

12.420

(2017: 4.80)

Total Assest

6,024.369,404

(2017: 5,142.699,424)

Current Ratio

2.6

(2017: 1.52)

Shareholder Equity

3,240.056,429

(2017: 2,934.413,263)

Breakup value per share

2.06

(2017: 1.55)
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Vision
STATEMENT

To contribute to the
society by creating better
value, innovative
technology, high quality
Steel products and
superiorservices.
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MISSION

STATEMENT

Ittefaq Steel aimsto proceed on its path to be the
leading provider of quality steel products, through
employees empowerment with safe and
environmentally sound practice.
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STRATEGIC

GOALS

Providing Customer Satisfaction by serving with
superior quality production of Steel bar, Girder etc
at lowest cost. Ensuring Security and
Accountability for employees, production facilities
and products.

Ensuring efficient Resource Management by
managing human, financial, technical and
infrastructural resources so as to support all our
strategic goals and to ensure highest possible
value additionto stakeholders.

ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LTD. 8 Annual Report 2018




CORE VALUES

Striving for continuous improvement and
innovation with commitment and responsibility:
Treating stakeholders with respect, courtesy and
competence; Practicing highest personal and
professional integrity; Maintaining teamwork, trust
and support with open and candid
communication; and Ensuring cost consciousness
in all decisions and op erations.
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 13" Annual General Meeting of the members of
ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTERIESLIMITED will be held onThursday, October 25,2018 at 12:00
noon atregistered office, 40 Bll, Gulberg-lll, Lahore to transact the following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

2.

To confirm the minutes of the lastAnnual General Meeting held on Saturday,
October 28,2017.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the
Companyfor the year ended June 30, 2018 together with the Directors and
Auditors Reportthereon.

. To consider and approve payment of Rs:0.50 (5%) per Share as cash dividend

and 10% bonus shares for the yearended June 30, 2018 asrecommended by
the Board of Directors to comply with the requirement of Section 5(A) of the
Income Ordinance, 2001

To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2019 and to fix their
remuneration. The presentauditor M/s. Kaleem& Co., Chartered Accountants,
the retiring auditors, who being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
appointment.

. Any otherBusiness with the permission of the Chairman.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

o
s
-

Lahore: Muhammad Shahzad Bazmi
October 3, 2018 Company Secretary.

ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LTD. 10 Annual Report 2018



NOTES:

1. Bookclosure
Share transfer books of the Company willremain closed from October 18, 2018
to October 25,2018(both days inclusive). Physical transfers/ CDS transaction IDs
received in order by the Company's Share Registrar, M/s. Corplink(Pvt.) Limited
Wings Arcade,1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore, up to the close of
business on October 17,2018 will be treated in time.

2. The individual members or representatives of corporate members of the
Company in CDC must bring original National Identity Card or Passport, CDC
Account and Participant ID Numbers to prove identity and verification at the
time of Meeting. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under-
mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 dated January 26, 2000
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

a) For Attending AGM
In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose
securities and registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall
produce proof of his/her id entity by showing original Computerized National
Identity Card(CNIC), atthetime of the meeting.
In case of corporate entity , the Board of Directors, resolution/power of
attorney with the specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced
(unlessithasbeen provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

b) For Appointing Proxy
A member entitled to attend and vote atthe above meeting may appointa
person/representative as Proxy to attend and vote on his behalf at the
Meeting. The instrument of Proxy duly executed in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company must be received at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting. Form of Proxyis available at Company Website.

c) For Zakat
Members are requested to submit declaration (CzZ-50 ) as per Zakat &Ushr
Ordinance, 1980, for Zakat exemption and advise changein address, if any.

3-E-DIVIDEND

As persection 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, in case of Public Listed Company, any
dividend payabile in cashshall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the
bank accountdesignated by the entitled shareholders. Therefore, through thisnotice,
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all shareholders are requested to update their bank account detail in the Central
Depository System through respective participants. In case of physical shares, to
provide bank account details to our share Registrar, M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited E-
Dividend mandate form is available on the Company website at
www.ittefaqgsteel.com

Please note that after31" October, 2017all cash dividends, declared by the company,
willonly be remitted to designated bank accountand not otherwise, so please ensure
an early update ofyour particularto avoid anyinconvenience in future.

4-CIRCULATION OF NOTICE OF MEETING & ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

With reference to SRO 787 (/2014 dated 8" September, 2014) issued by SECP,
shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and
Notice of Annual General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Share Registrar, M/s
Corplink (Pvt.) LimitedWings Arcade,1-K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore, to update
our record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of
Annual General Meeting through email. However, if a shareholder, in addition,
requests for a hard copy of the Audited Financial Statements, the same shall be
provided free of cost within Seven (07) Days of receipt of suchrequest.

5-Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under Section 150 of the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.:
The current prescribed rates for the deduction of withholding tax from payment of
dividend by the companiesare asunder:

Forfilers ofincome tax returns: 15%
Fornon-filersofincometaxreturns: 20%

The income taxis deducted from the payment of dividend according to the Active
Tax-Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR. Further, according to
clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be
determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer' status of Principal shareholder as well as
joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts
held by the shareholders.

In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide
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shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holders in respect of
shares held by them to our Shares Registrar, in writing as follows:

ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LIMITED
FORM OF JOINT SHAREHOLDING PROPORATION

Folio/CDC Names of Total | Percentage | CNIC no | Signatures
Account principal and shares | of shares (copy
no. joint shareholders held attached)
(proportion)

6-Video conferencing facility

Pursuant to provisions of SECP Circular No.10 of 2014 dated May 21,2014, if the
Company receives consent from members holding aggregate 10% or more
shareholding, residing in geographical location to participate inthe meeting through
video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will
arrange video conference facility in that city.

7. Members requested to notify any changes in their mailing addresses to the
Company's Share Registrar assoon as possible.

8. For any query/information, the shareholders may contact corporate affairs
department, 042-35765029, email address info@ittefaqsteel.com or Company's
Share Registrars, M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade,1-K Commercial, Model
Town, Lahore. Phone:042-35916714, 042-35916719. Email:corplink@gmail.com

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

-_d_‘,.-"____ I
il
&
Lahore: Muhammad Shahzad Bazmi
October 3, 2018 Company Secretary.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct sets out the Company's objectives and its responsibilities to
various stakeholders and the ethical standards required from its Directors and
employeesto meetsuch objectives and responsibilities.

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

All transactions should be accurately reflected in the books of accounts according to
applicable accounting principles. Falsification of the Company's books, any of the
recorded bank accounts and transactionsisstrictly prohibited.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Directors and employees of the Company must recognize that in the course of
performing their duties, they may be outinto a position where there is a conflictin the
performance of such duty and a personal interest they may have. Itis the overriding
intention of the Company that all business transactions conducted by it are on arm’s
length basis.

COMPLIANCEWITH LAWS, DIRECTIVES & RULES

Compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, directives and rulesincluding those
issued by the Board of Directors and Management.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Confidentiality of the Company's internal confidential information must be
maintained and upheld, which includes proprietary, technical, business, financial,
joint-venture, customerand employeeinformation thatisnot available publicly.

TIME MANAGEMENT

The Directors and the employees of the Company shall ensure that they adopt
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efficientand productive time managementschedules.

BUSINESS INTEGRITY

The Directors and employees will strive to promote honesty, integrity and fairness in all
aspects of the Company's business and their dealings with vendors, contractors,
customers, Joint Venture participants and Government officials.

INSIDER TRADING

Every Director and employee who has knowledge of confidential material
informationis prohibited from trading in securities ofthe Company.

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

The Company, its Directors and employees will Endeavour to exercise a systematic
approach to health, safety and environmental management, in order to achieve
continuous performance improvement.

INVOLVEMENT IN POLITICS, GIFTS & BRIBARY

Company shall not make payments or other contributions to political parties and
organizations. Employees must ensure that if they elect to take part in any form of
political activity in their spare time, such activity does not and will not have any
adverse effects on the Company and such activities must be within the legally
permissible limits. The Directors and employees shall not give or accept gifts,
entertainment, orany other personal benefit or privilege that could influence business
dealings.

COMPLIANCE

All Directors and employees must understand and adhere to the Company's business
practices and Code of Conduct. They must commit to individual conduct in
accordance with the Company's business practices and Code of Conduct and
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observe both the spirit and the letter of the Code in their dealings on the Company's
behalf.

ACCOUNTABILITY

Failure to adhere to the Company's business practices or Code of Conduct may
result in disciplinary action, which could include dismissal.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Shahzad Javed , Chief Executive Officer / Director

Mr. Shahzad Javed is the son of Mian Muhammad Javed Shafi; one of the most
eminent industrialists of the country with a superior vision and dynamic brand of
leadership. Mr. Shahzad Javed had held the directorships at, Ittefaq Sugar Mills Ltd.,
Ittefaq PowerLtd, Kashmir Feeds Ltd and Ittefaq Bio Tech Pvt Ltd.

Mr.Shahzad Javed isinstrumental in making strategic decisions for the Company and
has led the Company to become one of the leading players in steel sector. He did
early education from Aitchison College Lahore Pakistan. Further he did his B.Sc from
United State of America. He is an enthusiastic and devoted industrialist.

Mr. Mian Muhammad Pervaiz Shafi, Director

Mr. Pervaiz has arich and diversified experience of 40 years in iron and steel industry
andisrenowned as one of the most experienced industrialists of the steel industry. He
has also served as the Director of Ittefaq Sugar and Kashmir Sugar Mills Ltd. Under his
leadership the Company expects to achieve new heights and canfurther excel in the
steel industry. Mr. Pervaiz is also serving as a member of audit committee of the
Company.

Mr.Javed Sadiq, Director

Mr. Sadiq is serving as an independent director and has brought significant diversity to
the board of Ittefaq Iron Industries (Formerly Ittefaqg Sons Limited). Previously, he has
served on the boards of National Investment Trust, Regional Development Finance
Corporation, Lahore University of Management Sciences and State Cement
Corporation and currently holds directorships in The United Insurance Co. of Pakistan
and Green star Social Marketing. Having a remarkable history of more than four
decades, Mr. Sadigq has served various prestigious organizations including National
Development Finance Corporation as Director, EVP Karachi, SVP Zonal Head Lahore,
Overseas Employment Corporation as Manager Marketing Planning and
Development, MICAS Association Pakistan as Deputy General Manager, Decca Ltd.
London as System and O&M Analyst and BBC London in audience Research
Development. He has also worked with First national Bank Modaraba asthe CEO and
Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan as a Chairman.

Mr. Sadiqg has also rendered consultancy services to NDFC for the affairs related to
Karachi Electric, Wapda and National Book Foundation. Also, he has provided his
consultancyforthebillion, transmission and distribution dep artments of KE.

Mr. Sadiq is also a member of audit committee of the Company. He holds the degree
of B.A (Hons.) from University of Liverpool, England and is also an M.A in International
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Relations & Economy from University of Manchester, England.

Mr. Khalid Mustafa, Director

Mr. Khalid Mustafa is a graduate from M.A.O College, Lahore. He has a vast and
ilustrious experience of transport and steel business having served in the sectors in
various capacities. He possesses keen interest in Pakistan Politics and sports. He was
elected as councillor inlocal body election thrice and has also served as chairman
bait-ul- mall Lahore.

Mrs. KhalidaPervaiz, Director

Mrs. Khalida Pervaiz is daughter of Mian Khalid Siraj who was ex-partner of Ittefaq
Foundries. She has also served as director in Ittefaq Sugar Mills Ltd. At present she ison
the board as well as a member of Human Resource Committee & Remuneration and
has taken numerous initiatives for the development of HR function of the Company.
She is also supervising a charitableinstitution and actively participatesinsocial work.

Mrs. Ayesha Fahid, Director

Mrs. Ayesha Fahid is a graduate from Lahore College. Her presence onthe board and
as a member of Audit Committee has brought numerous initiatives to set high
standards and benchmarks for the performance of the Company. She also aims to
work for the improvement of product portfolio of the Company and expanding its
customerbase.

Mrs. Sumbleen Usman, Director

Mrs. Usman is a graduate from Lahore College. Apart from serving the board she is
supervising the procurement of raw materials and is also serving as a member of HR
& Remuneration Committee.
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COMPANY PROFILE

Ittefaqg the name of itself has over the years become synonymous with quality

structuralsteel in Pakistan.

Ittefaq steel is made up of 1000 team-mates whose goal is to take care of the
customers. We are accomplished this by being the safest highest quality and most
productive steel products company is Pakistan. We are committed to doing this
while being cultural and environmental stewards in communities where we live

andwork. We aresucceeding by working together.

The company's attention is focused on customer's satisfaction, develop ment of
products, research and quality control however, the main concern since the
beginning has been to emphasize oninvestmentin the nationalmanpower, asitis
the real capital of the company.

The company'slong terminvestment ina combination of advanced technologies
with the highly trained and motivated work force has been the key factor in
bringing us to this pointin our development. Today, by the grace of ALLAH we are
leading away in heavy industry by providing structure and alloy steel in the form of
billet & bars in all type of industrial, residential sectors.

Product Profile

Ittefq Steel is the leading steel roling mill in Pakistan with the capability to
manufacture international quality products with various standards, such as DIN,
ASTM etc. the company has created a name for itself and is known as the pioneer
in steel products. Our state of the artsrolling mill can produce structure steel (with
close tolerance and the required mechanical properties) and cater yo stringentt
requirements for critical applications. Highly responsive and flexible production
capability producing trailormade solution has resulted in Ittefaq Steel becaome a
preffered supplies to key customers of structural steelin the region. lttefaq steelis
also able to minimize the leading time required to provide consistentinternational
quality structural steel angels flat bars, channels, round and girders in a wide
range of sizes.

PRODUCTS
DEFORMED BARS

Ittefeq Steel has been shaping steel for the nation for more than 50 Years. Our
Deformed steelbars of Grade 40 and Grade 60 are produced in all American and
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British Standards Sizes from 10mm to 50mm. The Deformed bars are manufactured in a
state if the art fuly computerized plant. Well trained staff operates the plant with
through quallity control at all stages of manufacturing process. Ittefaq steel has also
introduced international quality ittefaq thermex TMT batrs.

GIRDER, T-IRON, | & BEAM, CHANNEL & ANGEL

I-Beam are commonly made of structured steel. A common type of I-Beam is the
Rolled Steel joist (RJS). These sections have parallel flanges. Ittefaq Steel is
manufacturing | & H-Beam, Girder, T-Iron, Channel and Angle that has no match in
strength and durability. All these products are available in different sizes as per your
needand convenience.

STEEL BILLETS

Ittefaq Steel has quickly emerged as one of the most productive mills in Pakistan
producing high quality industrial steel conforming to international standards industrial
section, angles girders, channels, rounds, and special shapes. Throughout our melt
shop from steel scrap to billets we maintain strict control over the comp osition of our
steel. Ittefaq steel quality system is based in the key principals of ISO andis focused on

production productsconsistentlyright, to meet the customer requirements.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES
INDUCTION FURNACES

Melt shop is the heart of steel making operation at ittefaq. Here, steel scrap is
transformed into asemi-finished product (Called a Billet) of correct size and chemistry,
in two medium frequency induction furnace each having of 15 ton capacity per heat

LADLE REFINING FURNACES

Ladle Refining Furnace with a capacity of20 ton per heatisused for refining liquid steel
to produce high quality alloy steel. LRF reduces the dissolved gas content and helpsin
improved quality with better content and helps in improved quality with better

recover of Ferro Alloys.
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AOD CONVERTER

A.O.Dis animproved Air-Oxygen Decarburization (AOD) Convertor. At Ittefaq Steel,
our AOD has a capacity of 22 tons per heat for making Stainless Steel andlow carbon
alloysteels.

CONTINUOUS CASTING

The two strand 6/11 radius continous caster is occupied with special features, for the
production of 100mm X 100mm to 200mm x 200mm steel billet.

BARROLLING MILL

Fully automatic rolling of 20” straight with auto controlled re-heating furnace has the
capacity to roll steel bars from 10mm to 50mm size according to international
standards.

STRUCTURALMILL

A 24” modern structural millhas beenrecently installed with a rolling capacity of 35-40
ton per hour to produce Ms Joist, Ms Channel, Ms Angle, Ms T-Iron, Round Bar and
other shapesofsteel structure.

Quality
Ittefaq iron industries limited is committed to supply quality products strictly as per
customer requirement. A well equipped metallurgical labortary has always been
need of the day to ensure products being produced as per requisite standards for this
purpose company have established a well equipped modernsteel testing laboratory
to ensure strict quality control at all stages i.e. from induction of raw material to the
dispatch offinish products.

Quality assurance laboratory installed is one of the most modern laboratories in
Pakistan equipped with the following testing facilities required for quality production
of steelandR & D purpose forfurther advancementinthe relevantfield.

Emission Spectrometer

A twenty seven channel optical Emission spectrometer for direct analysis of solid
metallic samples of ferrous metals with high precision accuracy least inter element
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interference particularly for trace element analysis of world famous German Spectro
Lab brand has been installed and Commissioned under foreign experts for quick and
accurate analysis of results and to print outreportsin addition to save analysis data for
traceabillity.

LECO CS -230 Analyzer

LEO CS - 230 has been installed to determine precisely carbon & sulphur contents of
steel and other carbonaceous material over a wide range of composition. The
equipment is of German origin and has been designed for more accurate results in
quick basis with builtin computerto printout analysisreport.

Universal Tensile Testing Machine

A modern hydraulic tensile testing machine with maximum load capacity 2000KN is
installed with servo control to test various metallic and non-metallic materials for
tension, compression, bending and shearing strength. It is capable of testing the
characteristic of material on physical and technological properties machine is
equipped with computer software and printer. It can control the test procedures as
the set programs and can also display record, process and print the test results and
can draw test curves automatically in real time. This machine has been recently
imported installed and commissioned under the supervision of foreign experts and is
presently the biggest capacity computerized machine in any steel industry in
Pakistan. Besides this, there is already a 1000-KN capacity machine in the mechanical
testing lab to share the load of testing.

Moreover this machine complies with ISO 7500-1, I1ISO-6892, ISP-15630, ASTMA-730,
ASTME4, ASTME9, ASTMD 76, JISZ 2841 stand ards.

Hardness Testing

Two latest model hardness testers have been installed in the laboratory for
determining brinnel Rockwell and Vickers hardness of ferrous nonferrous and hard

alloys with complete measuringrange.
Metallography

Metallography is a powerful material investigation tool. Its lead to establish product
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reliability and to determine the failure of materials. Keeping in view the vital role of
Metallography laboratory has been installed andis under functioning. The laboratory
comprises of a metallurgical microscope equipped with reflected illumination which
provides brightfield, dark field, polarization observation and photography. Moreover
a computer system with image analyzer software is attached to the microscope for

online microstructure analysis.
Chemical Analysis

In addition to above mentioned testing facilities, there exists a complete and up to
date chemical laboratory for analysis of ferrous and Ferro alloys. A dedicated and
experienced R & D team is engaged in developing new products and upgrading
existing formulations. We develop and produce products to meet the entire
satisfaction of the customer. We continuously upgrade the product based in the
feedback from end user. Our field representative keep a track of performance of
each supply and forward the feedback to our technical experts. Who analyze and
make necessary changes, if required. Our valued customers are assured of best
guality material.

Sample Preparation

The goalof metallo graphic specimen preparation is to reveal the true structure of the
material. True structure enables the analyst to examine a specimen surface thatshow
a precise image of the material. Mechanical preparation (i.e) (cutting, grinding and
polishing) is the most common method of preparing samples for microscopic
examination.

A complete range of equipment for cutting, grinding, fine grinding, cold mounting
and embedding, hot compression mounting has been installed in the metallograp hic
laboratoryfor proper preparation of samples formetallographic.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders:

| am really pleased to share with you asnapshot of our
excellent performance during the financial year
ending onJune30,2018.

Throughout the year, by making our best efforts, we
laid downthe foundation of our success brick by brick
and block by block and achieved all our targets set
forthe period in spite of over-all challenges faced by
the steel industry and political instability in the
country. The company achieved highest ever
production level and turnover in its history. This year
we earnedRs 6.5 billion gross profitwhichis 67% higher
as comparedtothe lastyear.

The importance of infrastructure cannot be over-
emphasized for the development of any country and

steel industry in this regard plays a very vital role. The government should come
forward and facilitate the sector enabling it to play its due role in development of the
country.

Inthe short as wellaslong run the prospects for the industry'sexpansion and growth are
quite bright due to the ongoing China Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) projects
and the government's decision to start the construction of Diamer-Bhasha dam.

Being a lead player we are fully focused and committed to achieving maximum
possible value for our shareholders by fully exploiting the growth potential of the
industry. In the near future, we are going to get installed a new furnace and re-
modification rolling mill as part of our expansion program. We are also taking stepsto
get an LNG connection for our mills to overcome the shortage of natural gas. For the
consumer/domestic construction market, we are also going to launch a new brand
by the name of lttefaq Gold to further strengthen our position and enhance our over-
allmarketshare.

This year's tremendous achievements would not have been possible without the
support of our shareholders and untiring efforts of our executive management team
as well as the staff from top to bottom. | thank you all for your support and efforts
toward making the company a significant player in the steelindustry of the country.
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DIRECTORS'
REPORT

It gives me great pleasure in
presenting you the Company's 13th
Annual Report and Audited
Accounts for the year

ended 30th June 2018.
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OPERATING RESULTS (Rs. In Million)

PARTICULARS
Gross Sale

Net Sales
Operating Profit
Profit Before Tax
Profit After Tax

Review Of Operating Results

| am really pleased to share with you a
snapshot of our excellent performance
during the financial year ending on June
30, 2018.

Throughout the year, by making our best
efforts, we laid down the foundation of
our success brick by brick and block by
block and achieved all our targets set for
the period in spite of over-all challenges
faced by the steel industry and political
instability in the country. The company
achieved highest ever production level
and turnover in its history. This year we
earned Rs 619 Million gross profit which is
67% higher as compared to the last year.
In current year ,we are fully focused and
committed to achieving maximum
possible value for ourshareholders by fully
exploiting the growth potential of the
industry. In the near future, we are going
to get installed a new furnace and re-
modificaton roling mill as part of our
expansion program. We are also taking
steps to get an LNG connection for our
mills to overcome the shortage of natural
gas. For the consumer/domestic
construction market, we are also going to
launch a new brand by the name of
lttefaqg Gold to further strengthen our
position and enhance our over-allmarket
share.

ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LTD.

28

2017-18 201617
6679.991 4544.932
6197.999 4442.102
544,042 319.554
415141 198.736
269.820 140.861
1. Dividend

The Board is pleased to propose a cash
dividend of Rs:0.50 per share i.e 5% and 10%
bonus shares for the year ended June 30,
2018.

2. Role of Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) /
Managing Dire ctor (MD)

CEO/MD is responsible for execution of
Company's long term strategy with a view to
creating shareholders value. The CEO/MD
takes execution of Company's long term
strategy with a view to creating share holders
value. The CEO/MD takes all day to day
decisions to accomplish Company's short
and long term objective/plans. He acts as a
direct liaison between the Board and the
Company management. He also
communicates in be half of the Company to
share holder, employees, Govt. authorities,
other stake holders and the public. CEO/MD
acts as a director, decision maker and
leader. The communicator role involves
interaction with the outside world, as well as
the organization’'s management and
employees; the decision making role
involves high level decisions about policy
and strategy. As a leader of the company,
he motivates employees and inculcates
requisite enthusiasm and spirit in them.
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3.
The Directors of the Ittefaq Iron Industries Itd.
(liL) are pleased to present annual report
together with Audited financial statements
of the company for the year ended 30" June
2018 and auditors' Report thereon.

General

4. Presentation of financial Statements
Financial statements prepared by the
Management present the Company's state
of affairs, results of its operations, cash flows
and changesin equity in a fair and accurate
manner.

5.  Accounting policies

Appropriate accounting policies are
consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and
prudentjudgment.

6. Booksof Accounts

Properbooks of accounts are maintained.
Compliance with IAS and IFRS International
Reporting standards (IAS) and international
Financial Reporting standards (IFRS), as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of financial state ments.

7. Internal controlSystem

An internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance that the
company ensures compliance of policies,
plans and laws, efficient use of resources,
accomplishment of goals besides availability
and integrity of financial and management
information. The internal control system of
FCCL is very comprehensive, effective
implemented and being monitored
regularly. The company has increase its
emphasis on control procedures of business
unit to confirm that corporate policies are
executed and corrections are applied as
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and whenrequired.

8. Bestpractices ofCorporate Governance
L, as a model corporate entity, pursues
perfection by adherence to the best
corporate and ethical practices. Braod
practices of corporate Governance, as
given inthe Companies Act 2017, are being
applied and implemented in true letter and
spirit. All periodic financial statements of the
Company were circulated to the Directors,
duly endorsed by ChiefExecutive officerand
Chief Financial Officer, for approval before
publication. Quarterly unaudited Financial
State ments along with Director'sreview were
published and circulatedto the shareholders
and regulators within one Month. Half Yearly
statements reviewed by Board after the
closing date and shall be presented to the
shareholders in the 13" annual General
Meeting on 25" October forfinalapproval.

(@) . Shareholding Pattern.

Pattern of shareholding of the Company in
accordance with Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2017
and the Companies Act 2017, as on 30th
June 2018, is attached on page 83 of the
report.

(b). Shareholders'Information.

To update the shareholders about the
operations, growth and state of affairs of the
Company, the management promptly
disseminates all material information
including announcement of interim and final
resultsto Pakistan Stock Exchange. Quarterly,
Half Yearly and Annual Financial Statements
are accordingly circulated within stipulated
time frame to all concerned. Likewise,
noticesand announcementsof dividend are
transmitted to all stakeholders andregulators
within the time laid down in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulation, 2017 and the
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Companies Act 2017. These are also

uploaded
website.

immediately on Company's

9. HumanResource Committee

The Committee comprisesofthree members
including its Chairman. Three members are
non-executive directors, while chairman of
the Committee is an independent director
During this year, two meetingsofthe Human
Resource Committee were held with the
attendance.

10. RoleofChairman

Leads the Board of Directors, represents the
Group and acts as an overall custodian of
the Group on behalf of the Board and
stakeholders. Responsible for ensuring the
Board's effectiveness, he empowers the
Board as a whole to play a full and
constructive role in the development and
determination of the Company's strategy
and overall objective.

11. Board Composition

Company board comprises of two
inde pendent directors, seven Non-Executive
Directors (Including Chairman) and one
Executive Director (CEO/MD). The diverse
knowledge, expertise and skills of the
members enhance the effectiveness of our
board. Our board competition represents
the interests of all categories of shareholders.

12. Performance Evaluation ofthe Board

Pursuant to Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017
the Board of Directors approved a
comprehensive mechanism for evaluation
of Board's own performance. The human
Resources and Remuneration Committee
will undertake a formal process for

evaluation ofperformance oftheBoardasa
whole and its Committees.
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13. Meetings of Board of Directors

The Board meeting are held in every quarter
of reviewing and approving the adopting of
Company's financial statements, coupled
with review and adoption of business Plan.
During this year, six meetings of Board of
Directorswere held with the attendance.

14. Committees ofthe Board

Following Committees were constituted to
work under the guidance of Board of
Director.

15. AuditCommittee

The Committee comprises of five members
including its Chairman. Three members are
non-executive directors, while chairman of
the Committee is an independent director
during this year, five meetings of the Audit
Committe e were held withthe attendance.

16. Board of Director's Remuneration

Al Directors of the Company are Non-
Executive Directorsexceptthe CEO/MD. The
Director are paidremuneration for attending
the Board/Committee meeting, as per
approval policy. The relevant details are
indicated innotes.

17. Qualifications of CFO and Head of
Internal Audit.

Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal
Audit possess the requisite qualification and
experience as prescribed in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance)Regulation, 2017.

18. Training of the Board Members.

The Company takes keen interest in the
professional development of its Board
members and managed necessary trainings
of itsBoard members as perthe requirements
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance)Regulation, 2017.
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of Vision. Mission and

19. Approval
Corporate Strategy by the Board.

Pursuant to Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulation,2017,
the Board of Directors has carefully reviewed

and approved the Vision, Mission and
Corporate Strategy of the Company. It
comprehensively states the ideology with
which IlIL was incorporated. We ensure that
our Vision and Mission set the direction for our
overall corporate strategy. The entire
organization is connected and driven by the
purpose and it serves the decision making
criterion onour dayto day business.

20. Code of Conduct.

Pursuant to Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2017,
IliL adheres to the best ethical standards in
the conduct of business. Accordingly, the
Code of Conduct of the Company is
approved by the Board of Directors and
placed on the website of the company.

21. Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017.

During the year Security and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) issued Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 for listed
companies, revising the previous regulations.
The Board of Directors is fully aware of the
requirements of the revised Code which is
applicable since 1" January 2018 and is
making necessary arrangements to ensure
compliance. As part of compliance of the
code, we confirm the following:-

a. The financial statements prepared by
Company Management present fairly its
state of affairs, results of its operations, cash
flowsand changesinequity.

b. Appropriate accounting policies have
been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and accounting
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estimates are based on reasonable and
prudentjudgments.

c. International Financial Reporting
Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have
been followed in preparation of financial
statements and any departures, there from,
has been adequately disclosed and
explained.

d. The system of internal control is sound in
designh and is effectively implemented and
monitored.

e. There are no significant doubts upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going
concern.

22. Salient Aspects of Company's Control
andReporting Systems

The Company complies with all the
requirements of the Companies Act 2017
and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017. To fulfill this
role, the Board is responsible to implement
overall corporate governance guidelines in
the Company, including approval of the
strategic direction asrecommended by the
Management, approving and monitoring
capital expenditures, Appointing, removing
and creating succession policies for the
senior management, establishing and
monitoring the achievement of
management's goal and ensuring the
integrity of internal control and
management information systems. The
Board is also responsible for approving and
monitoring financial and otherreporting.

23. Relations withCompany Personnel

Relatons between the management and
the workers continued to remain cordial,
based on mutual respect and trust. The
company has allocated funds for Provide nt
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Fund and Profit Participation Fund for its
employees. Considerable investment has
been made for welfare of staff in order to
provide safe and conductive environment.

24. Gratuity Funds Investment.

The Company also operatesfunded Gratuity
Fund Scheme covering all its permanent
employees in accordance with Gratuity
FundRule.

25. Related Party Transactions.

Pursuant to Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2017,
the Company adheres to the highest ethical
standards in the conduct of business. Policy
on Related Party Transactions of the
Company is approved by the Board of
Directors.

26. External Auditors.

M/s Kaleem & Co, chartered accountants,
has completed the Annual Audit forthe year
ended 30th June 2018 and will retire on
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.
In view of the good corporate governance
practices, the Board has recommended, for
approval by the shareholders duly endorsed
by Audit Committee, the appointment of
M/s Kaleem & Co, Chartered Accountants,
as External Auditors of the Company for the
yearending 30'June 2019.

27. Social Environmental Policy.

lliL follows the best possible ethical standards
in the conduct of business. Accordingly,
Social Environmental Policy ofthe Company,
duly approved by the Board of Directors, is
placed on the website ofthe Company.

28. Whistle Blowing Policy.

Pursuant to Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2017,
IliL is committed to achieve high standards of
integrity, ethical values and accountability.
Accordingly, whistle blowing policy of the
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Company is approved by the Board of
Directors and placed on Company's
website, which enables officers and
employeesto share theirconcernswhich are
addressed through necessary corrective
measures.

29. Disclosures.

To the best of our knowledge, Directors
(except as shown on page 36 of the report
on pattern of shareholding), Chief
Executive/Managing Director, CFO,
Company Secretary, Company Auditors,
their spouses and their minor children have
not undertaken any trading in shares of the
Company during the FY 2017 -18.
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MESSAGES OF THE CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The directors endorse the contents of the Chairman's and Chief Executive Officer's

messages. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board expresses its gratitude forthe efforts of all its employees, executives, workers
and stakeholders which enabled the management to run the Company smoothly
throughoutthe year. Itis expected thatthe same cooperation would be forthcoming
in future years.

On behalf of the Board

F s

P -~ i
i PR I-"'\- ..-""? 4
A e ot
Shahzad Javed Mian Muhammad Pervaiz Shafi
(CEO) (Director)

Lahore : Sep 26, 2018
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 FORM 34
(Section 227(2)(f)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

" Nare atthe Comraany | ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LIMITED | |

2. . Pollan of ~olding ol Ihe sharcs hele by Ihe s~archo sas oz al 30-06-2018

S~areheolz'ng:

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
b4 1 100 3588
2,457 101 500 1,224,573
1248 501 1,000 1,239,341
240 1 Q01 3,000 793,174
| 84 5001 10,000 1,451,324
57 RSl 15,000 750,920
43 “5,00° 20,0C0 783,250
2 2C.00° 25,000 576,500
20 25 G0° 30,000 570,999
|2 GRS 35,000 393,645
19 3500° 40,000 736,383
& 42,00° 45,000 346,000
14 4500° 50,000 693,675
3 50 CQr 55,000 158,500
3 55 00° 40,000 177,550
3 42,007 45,000 197,750
4 72.00° 75,000 296,024
) 7500 80,000 39" .50
5 8o ¢cQ” 85,000 215,000
2 85,021 90,000 266,524
11 25,021 100,000 1,098,000
2 100,021 105,000 207,500
| 115,021 120,000 118,500
| 120,021 125,000 123,000
| 125,001 130,000 125,50
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242,00
250,0CC
254,5CC
280,0CC
285,0CC
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359,500
400,CCC
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1,440,CG1

1,444,CCC

1,

1,495,CC1 1,4CC 00O 1,500,CCC

1,4/0,CC1 1,675,000 1,4/2,3/C

1,490,201 1,695,000 1,490,2C0

1,720,CG1 1,725 000 1,723.CC0

2,110,381 2,115 000 2,115,CCG

2,185,CC1 2,19C DOO 2,187,CCG

2,440,CC1 2,445 000 2,444,CCC

3,055,C0 1 3,06C 00O 3,058,490

5, 195,C01 5,2CC, 000 5,198,160

2.260,C01 5,265 000 5,260,630

&.310,CQ1 5,315 DOO &8,310,C9C

1 5,380,GC1 5,385,000 5,381,173
1 4,170,6C1 4,175,000 4,170,82G
1 6,305,001 6,310,000 6,309,780
1 5,045,CC1 5,85C, 000 B,049,8CC
1 8,200,0C1 5,206,000 8,205,CCC
I 3,240,CC | 8,245,000 8,243,48C
I 8.490,0C | 8,695,000 8,490,840
1 8.775,0C1 8,78C,000 8,778,690
b2 % 131,221,240
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2.3 Categories of sharzholders

z2.3.1 Zirec-crs, CHef Execurive Cfficers,
¢1¢ heir aoovie vl nirs Chilcen

2.3.5 Nsecialed Corroanin;,
ncetak’ags cre relatsc
ol s |rarer] Coroary|

32N and I

Z2.3.4 3anks Zava canen
FAacacial rsirutiors, Nor

Bor<irag Tcacial s ilajors
Z3.5 rsurcoee Corpeios

2.3.4 Modo-cbhas cre Mulac
“Lcs

2.5.7 Skare holdars Fo dirg 107

Cl melc

2.3.8 Genaral Public
a. ocal

L. Tocn
2.3.9 O hes (0 oo spedi icd)

loint Stock Companos
Olhes
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Share held

14,026,350
C?
1,267,300
C}
1,329,200
15113, 7/
D)

$5.513,7 14
2,000

3,873,895
95,200

Percentage

10.4695%

0.330C%

0.9659%

0.230C%

1.9129%

[1.5173%

0.0000%

72.7878%
0.3014%

2.9522%
0.0/23%
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Categories of Share Holders ONLY FOR INFORMATION

As on 30th June, 2018 NOT FOR PRINTING

$.No. NAME HOLDING 7a AGE

DIRECTORS, CEO THEIR SPOUSES & MINOR CHILDREN:
’ MIAMN MUHAMAMY PTRVAIZ SHATT [CDC) 10000 GQ.20757
Z MRS, AYESHA FA-ID (CDC; 10030 G.20757%
2 MR, LSMAN JAVED (CDC} 5,198,140 3.9414%,
4 MR. KHALID MJSTAFA (CDC) 10,000 G.20746%
5 MR. _AVAIS SASIQ (CDC) 10,000 3.2074%
& MRE. SLM3LEEN USMAN (C2C) 10000 G.2075%
7 MRS.KHALIZA PZXVEZ (CDCY 8,778 680 6.470%A

14,026 B50 10.4B95%

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES: i 0.0000%
NIT & ICP:

COC  INJSI_L UNIE EUsT Ol PAKISTAN {C.‘.‘C] 1,24/ 500 G.946597%

1,267 500 0.9659%

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS,

NON BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS: Q 0.0000%
INSURANCE COMPANIES:
OMUEE LHE ASSLRANCE CCMPAINY LIM IEL SF (€ 2C) 230,000 G. 14249,
2 ADMILLLIL ASSLRANCL CCMPANY LIV ILD M1 'COC) 54/ 600 541697
3 DAWOOL AMILY 1AKAI UL LIMIILD (COC) 53 GG G0/ 42%
7 DAWODD FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED (CDC) 472 200 (.2379%
5 DAWDSOD AMI Y TAKAFUL [ IMITED (CC) 572 00 G.1614%
1,329 200 1.0129%
MODARAEAS
| AK.{ GUARDIAN MODARABA. [CUC! 82,002 .0625%
2,000 0.0625%
MUTUAL FUNDS:
1 DG -TRLATZS AL-AMFEN 81 AM € DERICATED FQUITY =UND (G3C) 1,444 GG ©1004%
7 OO -TR.5TFF Al-AMZF\ SHARIAH STOCK FUND ‘CRC) 556,007 0.40NR%
3 COC-TRSTFF ALHAMRA IS Al C STGCK FUND 'C3C) 17,502 20733%
4 CDC TR.STEE IS SLAMIC =.ND (CLZ) 1.723.05 " 3T0%
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I
12
I3
1/
15
14
17
13

SO - TRUSTEC S SLAMIC FENBICN SAVIN G5 “INE-CQUITY ACTCJINT (CEC,
CHC -TRUETFF 1S ARGF CAF. FUND ()

CDC -7RUE7=2 JS PENSION SAV NGE FONZ - EQUITY ACCOUNT (C2C)
COCC - TRUSTFF MC3 PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND (EHC)
COC - IRLSIEENAFAIS_AMIC AT VE AL_ZCAI CN ES A Y FIND [ COC)
D RUSIFENAFRA X AMIC PR NCIPAT POTFCIFIY FUNDY (<2 2K0)
CDC  IRUSI_L NATA SLAMIC 5 OCK UNL (CLC;

CDC - TRUSTZE NAFA 57OCK =_.NE (CEC)

CPC IKUSIZE UB_ ASSE ALLCTAION FUND (COC)

CoC - IRLSIEE LEL <EHNREMENI SAV NGE FUND -ES Y SJB FLND (CJC)
ChC - TRIIST=F URE STGCK ADBVANTAG= FIND (CHC)
CLC-IRUSIEz A-AMZENISLAMIC RE . SAV. FLNC- EQLITY 3 JB -JN\LC (&3C)
M F3I - TRIST=F .5 GIDOWTH FUND 1)

MCBISL  [USI_L .S VALUL N (CLC)

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES:

13
19
Z0

71

23

ARA All HA3IE SECUR TIZS (PVT! 1IMITFD (C D)
ADAM 5_CURII L5 LIM ILD

ALl H.5AIN RA.ABAL L MI"ED (CDC)

ASDIA SECUR 128 (I'VI) L D {Co0)

3MA CAFITAL MANACENMENT LT, - MF (CDC)
5REFINANCIA SFRVICES (VT I, 1CHC)
DAWCOD LGU TIZS LIMITLE- MF {CDC)

ZANCY PFTRD F.IM SFRVICSS (FVT) IMITFR (CRC!
= RM DECON INTERNAT CNAL (FVT.) JIMITEC (CDC!
- RS SIR-FI CA A (I’VI.] 12, (Cl }(:I:i

4AJ MCHAMMAD ISIMAIL MI_LE _IMITZD (CDC!
CASHMIR FF=D5 | IV TRD 1CNRC)

CIAWAJA SCCURITIZS (FVT) LIMITLE (CDC|

M 5 RANS COMIMOIITIFS (PVT) ITD 'CC)

MU IAMMAL 3AS TR KASMAN {TIVAIL LIM 1D /CDC)
MUAHAMMAD SALIM KASMANI SECURITISS (PVT.) _TD. (CDC!
NCC PRES=11=L=MENI LEL VERY ACCCUN {CO0)
2ZARL SECURIT ES LIMITED - MF {C2C)

RAH $=CUR TIFS 15V7) I TR 'CRC)

RAS SYSTLMS ‘FVT.! LTD. {CDC)

RS =.BIISHFRS (2% VATT) IMIT=D (CRC)

SALIM SGL_R SLCLRITILS (FVI.) _IL. ([CDC!

3HADAB INNO VAT ONS (PRIVATE! LIM TED (CDC)
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287,00C
954,00
3¢7.30C
2,781
152,000
5,500

63,500

C.2 87%
D.7270%
C.2968%
SO0
Q. 1462%
O.0Z477%

D42

2 187,000 1.66677%
200,294 D35
972,200 27211%
457,000 DE1907%

1,208,500 0.9%10%

T LALTOD 1.8¢257

1 19C,000 D976V

15,031,177 11.4548%
180,000 013707
2% D020
175,000 0.1334%
(L300 D.0Z/74%%
1C,200 DNC76%
5,500 N.0Z38%
©Lo00 0.0C08%
188,200 0.14327
5,000 002387
10C,200 D.0745%
28C,200 9.2134%

1 472,270 1.9745%
565,000 0.4458%
172,500 D13157%

4,200 D03
150,000 0.11/3%
8,700 2.0538%
a,500 2.0259%
5,500 D.0538%
7.500 ONCE7%
£OD D.07047
269,200 0D.21/2%
20,500 0.02027%
3,873,899 2.9522%
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OTHERS

DAWCOD FAMI Y TAKA=.I IMTFD FMPIOYF=5 P.F (CDC) 28,500 D.0717%
2 TRUSTE™ TIRST YAWOC Y INV. BANK TN, & OTIFRTM> Q/T75 2T\ {CRC) 2,000 N.0°15%
3 TRLATCEC & AN VALUL GLASS LD ZMPLOYZZS FRXOVIJIENT FIND ([CEC) 15,200 D.0114%
L IRUSTE= OF NODVC NC< 28K “4ARMA [ZVI] 10 S1AaFE SRALIIY FLAD 8 27) 5C,000 0.0231%
95,500 0.0728%
EXECUTIVES 0 D.600D%
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN}: 7,000 SO015%
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL FLUBLIC (LOCAL): n5,513,114 77.7878%
95,515,114 72.7894%
TOTAL 131,221,240 100.06000%

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 107% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAFPITAL:

NIL
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL:

1 MRS. <IHA I2A PIRV77 {CRC) 3,778,490 RS A
7 MR. MUHAMMAD FASNA N TAR G SHAFI (<-NDC) 3,092,860 68237 7
2 MR. ATIF MURAR K (CI2C; 3,242,480 67287 7
4 MR. SHAH7 AT JAV =D 8,205,000 6,7528%
E RANA N SAR AHMAD 3,049,800 ¢,1345%
41,947,830 31.9825%

During the financiol yeor the troding in shares ol lhe company by the Direclars, CEQ, CFO, Campany

Secretary and their spouses and minor children is as lollows

S.No. NAME SALE

NIL
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Catagories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on June 30, 2018

No. ol

$r. No. Name shares Held [Fercentage

Assoclaled Companles, Undeviakings and Related Partles (Name Wise Detall):

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Delail)
1 CEC -TRLS™ZZ AL-AMZIN SLAMIC DERICATED ZQJ TY "UND (CDC) 1,444,203 1.1204%
z C2C -"R.ETEE AL-AMEEN SFARIAA $7OCK F.ND (CDC) 26,200 0.£202%
! C2XC- .8 EE ALHAMRA ISLAMC § DCK FUNI2 (CDC) 17,500 N.0133%%
4 2C TRUSTEE IS IS_AMIC FUND (CCC 1,722,203 1.3132%
c CC TPUSTIL IS SLAMIC 2ENG CN AV ANCE "IN ERITY ACCO NT 'C2C; 237,200 0.2157%
¢ C3C- RS LLISLARC_CA-. 1 UND [CDC) 854,300 0./2/ %
7 COC -TRJETIC 5 PENZION SAVINGE “LND - LG AITY ACCO UNT (CDC) 238,200 0.2042%
4 C™Z - "RLE7FF MCER PAKISTAN STCC K MARKFT =ND 1 CHC) 7,781 0.0021%
o CDC - TR JATEE MA=A 13 _AM C ACTIVE ALLGCA™ O\ EQUITY =LNE [CDZ, 192,500 0. 1153%
1C CIOC TRJSTIC NATA ILAM € ZRINCIZAL PROTECTED "LND 11 (CDC) 5,500 0.0042%
1 ST -TRUETFRE NAFA ISTAM C EDCK FUND [CTC) £31,200 0.4817'%
2 C2C- RUSLLNAL A 3 DOCK T UNLE [ZDPC) 2,187,000 |.5¢5/%
13 2C TRUSTEE U3L ASSET ALLOCATION FUNC (CDC) 227.89¢ 0.1737%
14 CEC IRLS T LR R RIM N SAVINGS UNTY TQI Y SLR TN (/CTEC) G20,000 0.7011%
15 C2C - NS LLUALSICCK ALVANIAG. UND 'C2C, (81,000 0.519C%
la COC-TRUSTZE A -AMZEN ISLAMIC =27 SAV, FLAD- EC JITY SJB FLND 'C2C) 1,202,502 0.9212%
17 MC FS - TRUSTF= )5 GROWTH =UND /TS 7,444,000 1.5625%
18 MCEI3. TRUSTLL _& VALULT_UND !CD2C) 1,192,200 0.7069%

Directors and their Speuse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
1 MIAN MUHAMAMZ "ZRVAZS INTTC2C) o.0ac 0.007¢%
Z MRS. AYZSHAFAH D [CDC) 12,00C 0.007¢%
4 MR, LEMAN AV =D {CI2) L APE 160 3.9€1 4%
4 MR. <l ALD MUSTAFA (CCC) 12,008 0.077¢%
C MR. JAVAID SADIG (CDC) 12.00C 0.0576%
¢ MRES. SUM3LEEN USMAN (ZIDC) 13,000 0.00/¢%
7 RS KFALDATERVEZ (CCC, 8,778,453 4.4002%
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Executives: - -

Public Sector Compuonies & Corporatians: - -

Banks, Development Finance Instilulions, Non Banking Finance 1,411,200 1.3/54%
Caompanies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Madarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more vating infrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detall)

MR35, AADA FERVEZ 1T20C) 5,773,690 6.45C0%
2 MR, MUIFAMMADN FASNA N TARIQ SHAF (CHC) & 470 S40 6 4231%
3 MR ATIF MIJRARIK [ CDC) S 743 280 52821%
L MR.SHAHZA JAV=D 8725000 5.2528%
5 RANA NISAR A-HMA™ 8049 300 6. 3LLTZ

All frades in the shores of the listed compaony, carried out by ils Directors, Executives ond their
spouses ond minor children shall also be disclosed:

5. No. NAME SALE FURCHASE

NIL
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

with the Code of Corporate Governance
Name of Company : ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LIMITED
YEAR ENDED: JUNE 30, 2018

1. Thetotal numberofdirectors are7(Seven)asper the following:
a) Male :4
b)Female: 3
2. The compositionofboard is asfollows:
a) IndependentDirectors:
- Mr.Javed Sadiq
b) Other-NonExecutive Director:
Mr. Khalid Mustafa
Mrs.Khalida Pervaiz
Mrs.Sumbleen Usman
- Mrs. AyeshaFahid
c) Executive Director:
- Mian Muhammad Pervaiz Shafi
Mr. Shahzad Javed

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as Director on more
than five listed companies including this Company(excluding the listed
subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that
appropriate steps have beentaken to disseminate it throughout the company
along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/ mission statement overall corporate
strategy and significant policies of the company. A complete record of
particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved amended has been maintained.

6. Allthe powers ofthe board have been duly exercised and decisions onrelevant
matters have been taken by board /shareholders as empowered by the
relevant provisionsof the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board
met at least once in every Quarter. Written notices of the Board Meetings, along
with agenda and working papers were circulated at least seven days before
the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were apypropriately recorded and
circulated.

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of directorsinaccordancewiththe Act and these regulations.

9. The Company takes keen interest in the professional development of its Board
members and managed necessary trainings of its Board members as per the

ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LTD. 45 Annual Report 2018



requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulation, 2017.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit , including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
board.

12. The board hasformed committees com prising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Javed Sadiq Chairman
AdnanYounas Committee Sec
Khalid Mustafa Member
Khalida Pervaiz Member
AyeshaFahid Member
b)Hr& R Committee

Javed Sadiq Chairman
SumbleenUsman Member
Khalida Pervaiz Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed ,
documented and advised tothe committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meeting (quarterly/half year/yearly) of the committee were
as perfollowing:

NAME Total Meeting Held
a) AuditCommitee 5
b) HR & Remuneration Committee 2

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function. The auditors are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditor of the Company has confirmed he has been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan , that he, spouses and minor
children do not hold shares of the Company and firm is compliance with
international Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted bythelCAP.

17. The statutory auditor has not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditor has confirmed that he has observed IFAC
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guidelinesinthisregard.
18. We confirmed that all other requirements of the Regulations have been
complied with.

2

R 7
ol ',:_-.--f’f" Ko A
[ ] P Sy
X [
Mian Muhammad Pervaiz Shafi Shahzad Javed
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Lahore: Dated September 26,2018
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

ON THE STAT=MENT CF COMFLIANCE W TH T-E CCDE
OF COR®CRATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations)
prepared by the Board of Directors of Ittefaq Iron IndustriesLimited (the Company) for
the year ended June 30,2018 in accordance withthe requirements of regulation 40 of
the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Ourresponsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations
andreportifit doesnotand to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors
for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure
compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and
that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or
not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulationsasapplicable to the Companyfortheyearended June 30, 2018.

KALEEM & COMPANY
C-ARTERED ACTCOUN"ANTS

Lahore: Dated September 26, 2018

zagagenort Martacr: Muharmmac Kalocem Rathor
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Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

AS AT 30 June 2018

To the Membersof Ittefaq Iron Industries Limited geneti i s ke
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Ittefaq Iron Industries Limited
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30,
2018, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changesin equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notesto the financial statements, including a summaury of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
givento us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or lossand other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required andrespectively
give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company'saffairs as at June 30, 2018 and of
the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows
fortheyearthenended.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basisforouropinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judg ment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor'sReportThereon

Management is responsible for the otherinformation. The otherinformation comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
otherinformation, we arerequired toreportthat fact. We have nothing toreportin thisregard.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsble for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial state ments, managementis responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue asa going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatedto going concern andusing the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has norealistic alternative buttodoso.

Board of directorsare responsible foroverseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor'sResponsibhilities forthe Audit ofthe Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtainreasonable assurance aboutwhether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis nota guarantee thatan
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financialstatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgmentand maintain professionalske pticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess th erisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error,design and perform audit proceduresresponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentionalomissions, misre prese ntations, orthe override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in orderto design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenessofthe Company'sinternalcontrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimatesand related disclosuresmade by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubton the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we arerequired to draw attention in our auditor's report
to therelated disclosures in the financial state ments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statementsre present the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achievesfair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directorsregarding, among othermatters, the planned scope and
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timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we id entify during ouraudit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we furtherreport thatin our opinion:

(a) Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
CompaniesAct, 2017 (XIX of2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows togetherwith the notesthereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account
andreturns;

(c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
year were forthe purpose of the Company’'s business; and

(d)No zakatwasdeductible at source under the Zakat and UshrOrdinance, 1980.

welp B Lt

Muhammad Kaleem Rathor _ Kaleem & Company
(Engagement Partner) - - Chartered Accountants

Lahore

Date: September 26, 2018

ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LTD. 57 Annual Report 2018



BALANCE SHEET

LQULEY & LIAUILITILS

SHARECAPITAl & RESERVES
Audwrices Slase Copital

Jesued Subscrived wow Pad-up Share Cozizal

Capils T Razerves
Fen Iy Porl e ol Saon=01= " 2m

Uappropriabed Drofit

Sweslas or Revaleatior of Jised Aswels
NON-ULLRREN I LIATHIITTEY
Upoasor: _edne ~Lboalutel
Delarrad 1zl les

CURRENT LEABTLIITES

ke ad LAl Sayalile-

Fineneo Cest Dayable

Sarl e Boretving

Cuarer: Porticn ot Long Teraw _iabdizies

Cenbmpoinas & Commeikrents

ASHTFTS

NN CLEREN I ASSLELS
Feoperty, Jlant & Foatp wen =
Capitl WIZ

Loap- sre Secutilv Seprass s

CURKENT ASSITI L
Sres. Speces & Lusse lnol:
Shink norace

Frade 2kl eeavdand zood

Advnnres, Dapasts, Crepevrisls & Obes Aecavalilas

P Res adlale

Cash i Bank a noaees

M esoldroles ‘ora vindepes D el

P L

v o
.-':..-"r"- .-"‘:;::"q'{
L RS
1!

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

ITTEFAQ IRON INDUSTRIES LTD.

[TEETRN KIS TR I Y [N TE A

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

58

Nnlec

2045
RUI'LLS

2017

RUI'LLS

1.1 3,000,300,000

3,000,000,000

1.2 L302212 doo L2L2212.20)
LR 1)/ G V74,50 A L
35,5054 46,777 454
17,7292 200 7¢7,C:8.071
3,2411156,430 2,934,413,203
6 703455,02 22V 87171
7 299,247 02 211,2€2.1M
b] 163.2/4.% ", LALESC )
y L1453 F/AL, 44
13,2857 JEEECLT
10 1,22,.254,00 on4s2,2/%
11 - 82,2220
1,06, 335,379 1515100,012

12 - B

6,024,369 406

3063,629,761

13 1,777.305, #
1032572
13,305,000

© T R85
2830200

CCALE e

VYIBTIE “A7.M T

14 255, 100007 2 AM,687.253
826,756,355 RC,207.074

15 L 27 A $84,717,0910
16 L3652 £1,087..22
17 1 02.505,5 5, R MY
1,222,430,51%9 3,529,007,7453

}, (124,369, 405 3,053,A2Y,7R1

i

e ; ..""
|‘I I_-::-;l.l’"f:

ey

DIRECTCR

Annual Report 2018




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 30 June 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2018
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2018
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the yearended 30 June 2018
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

For the yearended 30 June 2018

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

lttefaq ronIndustries Limited (‘'The Company") (Formerly Ittefaq Sons Private Limited) was
incorporated onFebruary 20, 2004 and converted into public unquoted company on 05
January 2017. The company also changedits name from (Ittefaq Sons (Private) Limited)
to (Ittefaq Iron Industries Limited) on 09 february 2017. The Company was listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange on 3rd July 2017. The principal activity of the company is
manufacturing of Iron Barsand Girders. The registered office of the company is situated
at40, B-l1lGulberg llIM. M. AlamRoad, Lahore.

2. BASIS OF PREPRATION

2.1 Statementof Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting

andreporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified underthe Companies Act, 2017;
and

- Provision ofdirectivesissued underthe company’s Act. 2017.

- Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ
from the IFRSs, the provisions of and dire ctivesissued under the Companies Act,
2017 have beenfollowed.

2.2 Basisfor Measurement

These accounts have been pre pared under historical cost convention without any
adjustments for the effects of inflation or current values. Historical costisgenerally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuationtechnique. In estimating fairvalue of an assetor
liability, the Company takesinto the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
orliability atthe measure ment date. Fairvalue formeasurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financials statements is determined on such basis, except for
share based-payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS-2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS-16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as netrealizable value in
IAS-2 or value in use in|AS-36.
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2.3 Functionaland presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the

Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest
rupees, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4 Use ofsignificant estimatesand judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and
reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are notreadily apparent from
othersources. Actual results may differfrom these estimates.
The estmates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Information about the judgments made by the managementin the application of
the accounting policies, that have the most significant effect on the amount
recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilitiesinthe nextyear are described in the following notes:
- Property, plantand equipment and intangible assets (notes 3.1 and 3.3).
- Trade debts (note 3.6)
- Storesand spares (note 3.4)
- Stock-in-trade (note 3.5)
- Taxation (note 3.17)
- Staff retrementbenefits (note 3.21)
- Impairment(note 3.8)
- Provisionsand contingentliabilities (note 3.20 and 3.27)

2.5 Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published
approved accounting standards

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting
standards that are effective andrelevant:

- IAS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows' amendments introduce an additional
disclosure that wille nable users offinancial statementsto evaluate changesin
liabilities arising from financing activities. The amendmentis part of the |IASB's
Disclosure Initiative, which continues to explore how financial statement
disclosure can be improved. In the first year of adoption, comparative
informationneed notbe provided. The relevantdisclosure have been madein
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b)

these financial statements (Refer note 33.4 to these financial statements).

The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has also brought certain changes with
regard to preparation and presentation of annual financial state ments of the
Company. Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the fourth
schedule to the Act have been revised, resulting in the elimination of
duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements and
incorporation of significant additional disclosures which have been included
in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standardsthat are effective but notrele vant:

There are certain new standards, amendments to the approved accounting
standards and new interpretations that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2017. However, these do nothave any
significant impact on the Company's financial reporting and therefore have
notbeen detailed inthese financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standardsthat are not yet effective:

The following are the new standards, amendments to existng approved
accounting standards and new interpretations that will be effective for the
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018, that may have an impact on the
financial statements ofthe Company:

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions -
amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain types of
arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginningon orafter 1
January 2018.The amendments coverthree accounting areas:

(a) Measurement of cash-settied share-based payments;

(b) Classification of share-based paymentssettled net of tax withholdings;
(c) Accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash
settled to equity-settled.

The new requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of
these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense
recognized fornew and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to
have animpact on Company's financial statements.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment
Property'- effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property
when, and only when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in
management's intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence
of a change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on
Company's financial statements.
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- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28
'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'] (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that a venture capital
organization and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in
associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each
associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of
investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to non-investment entity
that has an interest in an associate or joint venture thatis an investment entity,
when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement
applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment
entity associate's or joint venture's interestsin subsidiaries. This electionismade
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company's financial
statements.

- IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration' (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date
should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves
payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is
translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency
isreceived or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense orincome (or part of it)
would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance
consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each
payment or receipt of advance consideration. The application of
interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company's financial
statements.

- IFRIC 23'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective forannual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The
interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the
measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is
not likely to have materialimpact on Company'sfinancial statements.

- IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognized. ltreplaces existing reve nue re cognition guidance, including IAS 18
'‘Revenue’, IAS 11 'Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 'Customer Loyalty
Programmes'. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the
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potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition policies on
adoption ofthe standard.

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ and amendment - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing
guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instrume nts: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9
includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on
financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also
carries forward the guidance on recognition and dere cognition of financial
instruments from IAS 39. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing
the potentialimpactofchangesrequired in classificationand measurementof
financial instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of
the standard.

IFRS 16 'Leases' (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2019). IFRS 16 re places existing leasing guidance, includinglAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC
4 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 'Operating
Leases- Incentives' and SIC-27 'Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease'. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recoghnizes a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor
accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to
classify leases as finance or operating leases. Management is not expecting
anyimpact ofthe standard on Company's financialreporting.

Amendment to IAS 28 'Investmentsin Asso ciates and Joint Ventures'-Long Term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies
that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which
repayment is not expected in the forese eable future (referred to as long-term
interests or 'LTl"). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI
are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in
which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to
have animpact on Company's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits- Plan Amendment, Curtaiment
or Settlement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtaiment or settlement
of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial
assumptionsto determine its currentservice cost and netinterest forthe period;
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and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or
loss on any settement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other
comprehensive income. The application of amendments are not likely to have
animpact on Company'sfinancial statements.

- AnnuallImprovements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements
addressamendmentsto following approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the
amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a company
increasesitsinterestin a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A
company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it
obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously
heldinterestin ajoint operationwhen it obtains jointcontrol of the business.

- IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax
consequences of dividends
(including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are
recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable
profits.

- IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats
as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an
asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. The above
improvements to standards are not likely to have material / significant impact
onCompany'sfinancial state ments.

3.  SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies as set out below are consistently applied for all
periods presentedin these financial statements:

3.1 Propeny plant and equipments

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, (if any), except freehold land which is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost comprises of historical cost,
borrowing cost pertaining to the erection period and directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to working condition. These costs are transferred to specific
assets as and when assets are available for use. Subsequent costs are included in
the assets carrying amount orrecognized as a separate asset, as appro priate, only
when it is probable that future economics benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Cost
incurred to replace a component of anitem of property, plantand equipment is
capitalized and the asset so replaced is derecognized. The cost of the day to day
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servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss
account.

Depreciation ischarged toincome applying the reducing balance method atthe
rates given in relevant notes to the financial statements to write off the cost of
operating fixed assets over their expected useful life. Depreciation on additions is
charged from the date when the asset is available for use and on deletions up to
the date when the asset is deleted. An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gainorloss on disposal orderecognition (calculated at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the
asset) istakento profit and loss account.

Impairment test for property, plant and equipment is performed when there is an
indication of impairment. At each period end, an assessment is made to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications
exist, an estimate ofthe asset'srecoverable amountis calculated being the higher
of the fair value of the asset less cost to sell and the asset's value in use. If the
carrying amount of the asset exceedsits recoverable amount, the property, plant
and equipmentisimpaired and animpairmentloss is chargedto the profit and loss
accountso astoreduce the carrying amount of property, plantand equipment to
its recoverable amount. Fair value is determined as the amount that would be
obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledge able and wiling parties. Value in use isdetermined asthe presentvalue
ofthe estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use ofthe
property, plant and equipment in its present form and its eventual disposal. An
impairment loss is recovered if there has been a change in the estimate used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extentthat the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairmentloss had been recognized.

3.2 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progressis stated at cost less ide ntified impairment losses, ifany. Al
expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installation and
construction period are caried under capital working-progress. These are
transferred to specific assets as and when these are available for use. All costs or
expenditures attributable to work-in-progress are capitalized and apportioned to
buildings and plant and machinery atthe time of commencement of commercial
operations.

3.3 Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is an identifable non-monetary asset without physical
substance.

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the expected future
economic benefitswillflow to the entity and the cost of the assetcan be measured
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reliably. Cost of the intangible asset (i.e. computer software) includes purchase
cost and directly attributable expensesincidental to bring the assetforitsintended
use.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an
expense asand whenincurred.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisaton and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is charged over the
estimated useful life of the asset on a systematic basis applying the straight line
method at the rate of 33.33%.

Useful lives ofintangible operating assets are reviewed, at each date of statement
offinancial positionand adjustedifthe impactofamortisation is significant.

The carrying amount of the intangible assets is reviewed forim pairment whenever
events or changesin circumstancesindicate that the carrying amount may notbe
recoverable. An impairmentlossis recognised in the profit or loss for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Reversal of
impairmentlosses are also recognised in the profit or loss, however, itisrestricted to
the original cost ofthe asset.

3.4 Stores, spares and loose tools
Store andspares are valued at moving average cost or net realizable value (NRV).

ltem in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid
thereon.

3.5 StockiInTrade
Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of average cost and net realizable value except
waste which is valued at net realizable value determined on the basis of contract
prices. Average cost and net realizable value are defined asunder:

Costisdetermined asfollows:

- ForRaw Materials, Weighted average cost.

- For Work-in-Process, At weighted average manufacturing cost (Direct Labour,
Material and Appropriate Manufacturing Overheads)

- Finished Goods

- Net Realizable Value, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.6 Trade Debts and Other Receivables
Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for
doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the yearend. Bad
debts are writte n off when identified.

3.7 Directors/ Sponsors Loan
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The company has discounted loan using market based interest rate on loans with
similarterms and conditions.

3.8 Impairment
The management ofthe Company reviews carrying amounts of its assetsincluding
receivables and advances and cash generating units for possible impairment and
makes formal estimates of recoverable amountif there isany suchindication.

3.9 Surplus OnRevaluation Of Fixed Assets

Revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery
is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets
does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the
carrying amount of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and
machinery is recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and
presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment “except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset previously recognised in profit
and loss account, in which case the increase is first recognized in profit and loss
account to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to
the asset, all other decreases are charged to profit and loss account. The
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders.
Eachyear, the difference between depreciaton based on therevalued carrying
amount of the asset charged to profit and loss account and de preciation based
on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to
retained earnings.

3.10 PriorYear
This includes adjustments, where considered ne cessary, to existing provision for tax
made in previousyeaurs arising from assessments framed during the period forsuch
years.

3.11 SalesTax AndFederal Excise Duty

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of amount of sales tax and

federal excise duty except:

- Where amount incurred on a purchase of asset or service is hot recoverable
from the taxation authority, the tax / duty is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part ofthe expense item, as applicable; and

- Receivables or payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax and
federal excise duty included.

The net amount of sales tax and federal excise duty re coverable from, or payable

to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the

balance sheet.
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3.12 Assets SubjecttoFinance Lease
Leaseswhere the company hassubstantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified asfinancesleases. Atinception, finance leases are capitalized atthe
lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements
and the fair value of the assets, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss, ifany.
The related rental obligations, net of finance costs, are included in liabilities
against assets subject to finance lease. The liabilities are classified as current and
non-current depending uponthe timing of the payment.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance costs so as to
achieve a constantrate on the balance outstanding. The interest element of the
rentalis charged to profit and loss account over the lease term.
Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated overthe estimated useful
life of the assets on reducing balance method at the rates specified in schedule.
Depreciation of leased assetsis chargedto profitandlossaccount.
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assetis available for use
while no depreciation ischargedinthe monthin which the asset is disposed off.
The finance cost is calculated at the interest rates implicit in the lease and are
chargedto profit and lossaccount.

3.13 Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments and recognized at their fair
value. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a
deduction from equity to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.
The costs of an equity transaction that is abandoned are recognized as an
expense.
Transaction costs that relate jointly to more than one transaction such as costs of a
concurrent offering of shares and a stock exchange listing are allocated to those
transactions using a basis of allocation that is rational and consistent with similar
transactions.

3.14 ForeignCurrencies
Foreign Currency transactions are converted into Pak Rupees using the rates
prevaiing on the date of transaction while monetary assets & liabilities are
converted into Pak Rupees using the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses on conversion are charged to income
currently.

3.15 Trade and OtherPayables
Liabilities for rade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which isthe fair
value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received.
Whether or not billed to the Company. Provisions are recognized when the
Company has a presentlegal or constructive obligations asresults of past events, It
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is probable that an out flow of resources embodying economic be nefits will be
required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflectthe current bestestimate.

3.16 EamingsPer Share
The company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by using profit and loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, adjusted for the affects of all dilutive potential ordinaryshares.

3.17 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognised in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which
case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In
making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the
management considersthe currentincome taxlaw and the decisions of appellate
authorities on certainissuesin the past.

Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss forthe yeatr, using taxrates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years.

Provisions for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of
the Company under presumptive /finaltaxregime at the applicable taxrates and
remaining income streams chargeable at current rate of taxation under the
normal tax regime and / or minimum tax liability or alternate corporate tax as
applicable, aftertaking into accounttax credits and taxrebates available, ifany.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet liability method, providing for
temporary difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
amount of deferred tax provided isbased on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the tax rates
enacted or substantivelyenacted atthe reporting date.

The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent thatitis probable that
taxable profits for the foresee able future will be available against which the assets
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax be nefit will be realised.
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3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at
cost. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and bank balances, cheques in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, running finance under mark-up arrangements and short term loans
whichform anintegral partof the Company's cash manage ment.

Borrowings and their cost

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are stated at amortized cost with any
difference between costand redemptionvalue being recognized in the profitand
loss / equity overthe period of the borrowings on an effe ctive interest basis.

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred excepttothe
extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
constructionand commissioning of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any ,
are capitalized as part ofthe cost of that asset.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, ifit is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewe d periodically
and adjusted toreflectthe currentbest estimate.

Employee Benefits

The cost of defined benefit retirement plan (gratuity) is determined using actuarial
valuations (projected unit credit method) performed by independent actuaries.
The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future
salary increases, and mortality rates. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Revenue Re cognition

Revenueis measured at fair value of the consideration received orreceivable and

represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal

course of business.

- Sale of goods is recorded when significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the customer;

- Interest andrentalincome are recognized on accrual basis.

- Saleofscrapisrecognized on actualrealization basis.
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3.23 Foreign currencytransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translatedinPPakistanrupees (functionaland
presentation currency) at the exchange rate prevaiing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitesin foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistan rupees at the rates of exchange approximating those prevalent at the
date of statement of financial position. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are rec ognised
inthe profit orloss.

3.24 Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared.
Appropriations of profit are reflected in the statement of changes in equity in the
periodin which such appropriations are approved.

3.25 Financialinstruments

3.25.1Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and re ceivables, available forsale and held to
maturity. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assetswere acquired. Manage mentdeterminesthe classification ofitsfinancial
assets atthe time ofinitial recognition.

(a) Financial assets atfairvalue through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held
for rading and financial assets desighated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Assetsinthis category are classified as currentassets.

(b) Loansandreceivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable paymentsthat are not quoted inanactive market.

(c) Heldtomaturity
Held to maturity are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity that are quoted in an active market, where
manage ment has the intention and ability to hold till maturity are carried
atamortised cost.

(d) Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
desighated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories.
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They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to
dispose of the investme nts within twelve months from the reporting date.
Available for sale financial assets in such case are classified as shortterm
investmentsin the statementoffinancial position.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised as “Other
comprehensive income” are included in the profit or loss as gains and
losses on disposal of short term investments. Interest on available for sale
securities calculated using effective interest method is recoghnised as profit
or loss. Divide nds on available for sale equity instruments are recognised in
the profit or loss when the Company's right to receive payments is
established.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
purchases and sales of investments are recognised at trade date i.e. the
date onwhichthe Company commits to purchase orsellthe asset.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fairvalue and transaction costs are expensed in the profitor
loss.

Available forsale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. 'Loans and re ceivables'
and 'held to maturity' investments are carried at amortised cost using
effective interestrate method.

Gains orlosses arising, from changesin the fairvalue of the 'financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss' are recognised in the profit or loss.
Changesin the fairvalue ofinstruments classified as'available forsale' are
recognised in 'Other comprehensive income' until derecognised or
impaired, when the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
unrealised surplus onrevaluation ofinvestments are includedin the profitor
loss for the year.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current prices. If the
market for a financial asset is not active (for unlisted securities), the
Company measures the investments at cost less impairment in value, if
any.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The Company assesses at each date of statement of financial position
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assetsisimpaired.
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3.25.2 Financial liabilities

Allfinancial liabilities are re cognised at the time whenthe Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are
initially measured at cost, whichisthe fair value of the consideration given.
Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts
isrecognised in the profit orloss.

3.26 Off-setting of financial assetsand financial liabilities
A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amountis re ported
in the financial statements ifthe Company has a legallyenforceable rightto set-
offthe transaction and also intends eitherto settle on anet basis ortorealise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.27 Contingentliabilities
Contingentliability is disclosed when:

- thereis a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- thereis present obligation that arises from past events butitis not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

3.28 Contingentassets
Contingent assets are disclosed when there is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company. Contingent assets are not recognised until their realisation become
virtually certain.

3.29 Investments
Allinvestments are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of consideration
given.
These investments are being measured at fair value, being their market value at
balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is included in profit or loss for the
period. Whereas, cost is calculated on moving average basis.
Classification of investments is made based on the intended purpose of holding
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3.29.1

3.29.2

3.29.3

3.30

suchinvestments, which is as follows:

Held for Trading Se curities
These are investments securities, which are acquired principally forthe purpose
of generating profit, from short-term fluctuationsin price.

Held to Maturity Securities
These are investments securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity and the company hasthe positive intentand ability to hold till maturity.

Available forsale securities
These are investments, which do not fallunderthe category of held fortrading or
heldto maturity.

Transactionswith Related Parties

Transactions with related parties are priced on arm'slength basis. Prices for these
transactions are determined on the basis of comparable uncontrolled price
method, which setsthe price with reference to comparable goods andservices
soldin an economically comparable market to abuyerunrelated to the seller.
Sales, purchases and other transactions with related parties are carried out on
commercialtermsand conditions.
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